UNITED STATES DISTRICT GOURE

. ‘ U.S. DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAQRTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

DALLAS DIVISION FILED

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

CLERK, U.S. DISTRICT COURT
By

Plaintiff,

Beputy

\
JPI CONSTRUCTION, L.P.; MULTIFAMILY
CONSTRUCTION, L.L.C.; JPI APARTMENT
DEVELOPMENT, L.P. D/B/A TPI CAMPUS
QUARTERS; LIFESTYLE APARTMENT
DEVELOPMENT SERVICE, L.L.C.; JEFFERSON
BEND, L.P. D/B/A JEFFERSON AT MISSION GATE
APARTMENTS,; JEFFERSON LAKE CREEK, L.P.
D/B/A JEFFERSON CENTER APARTMENTS; and
APARTMENT COMMUNITY REALTY, L.I.C.

Civil Action No. -

Defendants.
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)
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COMPLAINT

The United States of America alloges:

1. This action is brought by the United States to enforce the Fair Housmg Act, Title VIII
of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended by the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988
{(*Fair Housing Act™), 42 U.8.C. §§ 3601-3619, and Title III of the Americans with Disabilities
Act of 1990 (“"ADA™), 42 U.S.C. §§ 12181-12189.

e e s Juorisdiction and Yenue ...

2. The Court has juriédiction over this action under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1345, and 42

U.S.C. §§ 3614(a) and 12188(b)(1}B). The Cowrt may grant declaratory and other relief

pursuant to 28 U.8.C. §§ 2201 and 2202, e



3. Venue is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391 and 1392 because a substantial part of
the events or omissions giving rise to the claims alleged in this action arose in the Northern
District of Texas.

Properties

4. Jefferson at Mission Gate (“Mission Gate”) is an apartment property located at 8025

~ Ohio Drive, Plano, Texas 75024-2316. Mission Gate has a rental office.
5. Jefferson Center Apartments (“Jefferson Center™) is an apartment property located at
§701 West Palmer Lane, Austin, Texas 78729-4941. Jefferson Center has a rental office.
| The Defendants |
6. Defendant JPI Construction, L.P. is a limited partnership organized under the laws of
Delaware and registered to do business in Texas and other states, with its principal place of
'business at 600 E, Las Colim.ts Boulevard, Suite 1800, Irving, Texas 75039-5625, Defendant JPI
Construction, L.P. is a general contractor for multi-family housing, including housing that was
built for first occupancy after March 13, 1991, It works with other JPLrelated companies
engaged in the development of multi-family housing. It was the general contractor for Mission
Gate and Jefferson Center, and, in those capacities, was involved in the design and construction
of Mission Gate, Jefferson Center, and other covered multi-family dwellings.
7. Defendant Multifamily Constroction, L.L.C. is a limited Hability company organized
. __ under the laws of Delaware and registered to do business in Texas and aother states, with its. .
principal place of business at 600 E. Las Colinas Boulevard, Suite 1800, Irving, Texas 75039-
5625. Defendant Multifamily Construction, 1.L.C. is a general partner of Defendant JPI.

~ 7 Construction, L.P. and engages in the business of constructing multi-fanily housing properties.



In that capacity, Defendant Multifamily Constiuction, L.L.C. was involved In the.design and
construction of Mission Gate, Jefferson Center, and other covered multi-family dwellings.

8. Defendant JPT Apartment Development, 1..P., also doing business as JPI Campus
Quarters, is a limited partnership under the laws of Delaware and registered to do business in

Texas and other states, with its principal place of business at 600 E. Las Colinas Boulevard, Suite

1800, Trving, Texas 75039-5625. Defendant JPI Apartment Development, L.P. was an owner
and developer of Mission Gate and Jefferson Center during the design and construction of
Mission Gate and Jefferson Center, and, in those capacities, was involved in the design and
constrizction of Mission Gate, Jefferson Center, and other covered multi-family dwellings.

9. Defendant Lifestyle Apartment Development Service, L.L.C. is a limited liability
corpany under the laws of Delaware and registered to do business in Texas and other states,
with ifs principal place of business at 600 E. Las Colinas Boulevard, Suite 1800, Irving, Texas
75030-5625. Defendang Lifestyle Apartment Development Service, L.L.C. engages in the
business of residential real estate ownership and development. Defendant Lifestyle Apartment
Development Service, 1..L.C. was a general partner in Defendant JPI Apartment Developmient,
L.P. and was involved in the design and construction of Mission Gate, Jefferson Center, and
other covered multi-family dwellings.

10. Defendant Jefferson Bend, L.P., also doing business as Jefferson at Mission Gate, is

-a limited partnership organized under the laws of Delaware and registered (o do busipess in

Texas, with its principal place of business at 600 E. Las Colinas Boulevard, Svite 1800, Irving,

Texas 75039-5625. Defendant Jefferson Bend, L.P. was an owner and a developer of Mission



Gate during the time of its design and construction. In that capacity, Defendant Jefferson Bend,
L..P. was involved in the design and construction of Mission Gate.

11. Defendant Jefferson Lake Creek, L.P., also doing business as Jefferson Center
Apartments, is a limited partnership organized under the laws of Delaware and registered to do
business in Texas, with its principal place of business at 600 Las Colinas Blvd., East, Suite 1800,.

 Irving, Texas 75039-5625. Defendant Jefferson Lake Creek, L.P. {n;a;éiahiéﬁﬁé? and a developer
of Jefferson Center during the time of its design and construction. In that capacity, Defendant
Jefferson Lake Creek, L.P. was involved in the design and construction of Jefferson Center.

12. Defendant Apartment Comumunity Realty, L.L.C. iy a limited liability company
organized under the laws of Delaware and registered to do business in Te:;as and other states,
with its principal place of business at 600 E. Las Colinas Boulevard, Suite 1800, Irving, Texas
75039-5625. Defendant Apartment Community Realty, L.1..C, engages in the Business of
residential real estate ownership and development. Defendant Apartment Conmmunity Reaity,
L.L.C. was a general partner in Defendant Jefferson Bend, 1..P. and Defendant Jefferson Lake
Creek, I.P. and was involved in the desi gn and construction of Mission Gate and Jefferson

Center.

Cither Properties

13. The Defendants have designed and constructed 205 or more other multi-famity

. housing properties in 26 states and the District of Columbia. These other mulfi-family housing

properties typically have rental or sales offices.



Faetual Allesations

14. The properties described in paragraphs 4, 5 and 13 were designed and constructed for
first occupancy after March 13, 1991,
15, The properties described in paragraphs 4, 5 and 13 contain “dwellings™ as defined by
42 TU.8.C. § 3602(b).
16. The jjrho‘peﬂ:ias described in paragraphs 4, 5 and 13 contaip “covered multi -family
dwellings” within the meaning of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(f).
17. 'The covered multi-famity dwellings at the properties described in paragraphs 4, 5 and
13 are subject to the accessibility requirements of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(f).
18. The covered mulii-family dm.rellings at the properties described in paragraphs 4 and 5 |
are not designed and constructed in a manner so that:
a, the public use and common use portions of the dwellings therein are readily
accessible to and usable by handicapped persons;
b. &ll doors designed to allow passage info and within all premises within such
dwellings are sufficiently wide to allow passage by handicapped persons 1n wheelchairs;
¢. all premises within such dweilings contain the following features of adaptive
design:
1. accessiblg routes into and through the dwellings;
o - i light switches, electrical outlets, thermostats, and 61:11@1 environmental
conirols in accessible locations; and
iii, usable kitchens and bathrooms such that an individual in a wheelchair

- can maneuver about the space. - - ' S s


http:4,-S-and.13

19. Some of the covered multi-family dwellings at the properties deseribed n paragraph
13 are not designed and constructed in a manner so that
a. the public use and common use portions of the dwellings therein are readily
accessible to and usable by handicapped persons;
b. ail doors designed to allow passage into and within all premises within such
- dwetlings are sufficiently wide to aliow pasaé.ge by ]1andicappéd rﬁeréiorlzsiiril Wihééliérhé;irs;
¢, all premises within such dwellings contain the following features of adaptive
design:
i. accessible routes into and through the dwellings;
ii. light switches, electrical outlets, thermostats, and other environmental
controls in accessible locations; and
+ ili, usable kitchens and bathrooms such that an individual in a wheelchair
can maneuver about the space.

20. The rental or sales offices at the properties degeribed in paragraphs 4, 5 and 13 are
public accommodations within the meaning of Section 301{7)(E) of the Americans witl
Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. § 12181(7)(E).

21. The rental or sales offices of the properties described in paragraphs 4, 5 and 13 were
designed and constructed for first occupancy after January 26, 1993,

-~ 22, Therental or sales offices of the properties described in paragraphs 4, S-and 13-are
subject to the requirements of 42 U.S.C. §§ 12181-12183,

23, The rental or sales offices of the properties described in paragraphs 4 and § are not



disabilities, as required by Section 303(a)(1) of the ADA, 42 1).5.C. §12183(a)(1). These rental
or sales offices fail to comply with the Department of Justice’s regulation implementing Title IIf
of the ADA, 28 C.E.R. Part 36, including the Standards for Accessibie Design, 28 C.E.R. Part 36,
Appendix A (“the ADA Standards™).

24. The rentai or sales offices of some of the properties described in paragraph 13 are not

designed and constructed so Vth;afrthéy are readily accessible to and usdbié by md1v1d£ais Wifh
disabilities, as required by Section 303(a)(1) of the ADA, 42 U.S.C. §12183(a)(1). These rental
offices fail to comply with the Department of Justice’s regulation implementing Title I of the
ADA, 28 CFR. Part 36, including the ADA Standards.

Fair Housing Act Claims

25. The al[egations of paragraphs 1 th.rough‘. 24 are hereby incorporated by reference.
26 The Deféndants have failed to design and construet covered multi-family dwellings
in the manner set forth in 42 U.S.C. §§ 3604(H(3)(C).
27. The Defendants’ conduct described above violates 42 U.S.C.  §§ 3604(H)(1), (©)(2),
and (H{3)(C).
28. The Defendants’ conduct constitutes:
a. a ﬁattern or ﬁractice of resistence to the full enjoyment of rights granted by the
Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 -~ 3619, or
~ - b. adenial to a group of persons of rights granted by the Fair Housing Act; 42 -

U.S.C. §§ 3601 — 3619, which raises an issue of general public importance.



29. Persons who may have been the victims of the Defendants’ discri;,niﬁatc_n‘y housing
practices are aggrieved persons as defined in 42 U.5.C. § 3602(1), and may have suffered injuries
as a result of the conduct described above.

3{). The Defendanis’ conduct described above was .intenti.onal, willful, and taken in

disregard for the rights of others.

Americans with Disabilities Act Claims

31. The aliegations of paragraphs 1 through 24 are hereby incorporated by reference.

32. The Defendants have failed to design and construct the rental or sales offices and
other public nse areas at the properties described in paragraphs 4 and 5 in a manner required by
42 U.S.C. § 12183{a)(1) and the ADA Standeards.

33, The Defendanis have failed to design and construct the rental or sales offices and
other public use areas at some of the properties described in paragrapll 13 in a manner required
by 42‘.U.S.C. § 12183(a)(1) and the ADA Standards,

34, The Defendants’ conduct constitutes:

a. apattern or practice of discrimination within the meaning of 42 U.S5.C. §
12188(b)(1)(B)(1) and 28 C.FR. § 36.503(a); or
b. unlawful discrimination that raises an issue of general public importance -

within the meaning of 42 U.8.C. § 12188(b)(1)(B)(ii) and 28 C.E.R, § 36.503(b).

_ 35, Persons who may have been the victims of the Defendants® discriminatory conduct
are aggrieved persons as éeﬁnsd in 42 U.S.C, § 12188(b)}(2)(B), and may have suffered injuriés

as a result of the conduct described above.



36. The Defendants’ conduct described above was intentional, willful, and taken in

disregard for the rights of others.

~ and the Americans with Disabilities Act;

Praver for Relief

WHEREFORE, the United States prays that the Court enter an ovder that:

1. Declares that the Defendants’ conduct as alleged herein violates the Fair Housing Act

2. Enjoins the Defendants, their officers, employees, agents, successors, and all other

persons in active concert or participation with any of them, from:

a. at the preperties identified in paragraphs 4 and 5, failing or refusing to bring
the covered multi-family dwelling tnits and public use and common use areas into full
compliance with 42 U.S.C. § 3604(D);

0. at the properties identified in paragraphs 4 and 5, failing or refusing to conduct
a compliance survey to determine whether the retrofits ordered in paragraph (a), above,
were made properly;

c. at the properties identified in paragraphs 13 and all other covered multi-family
dwellings built for first occupancy after March 13, 1991, in which any Defendant was
involved in the design and cons‘truction,—failing or refusing to: (i) if not already done,
conduct 2 compliance survey to identify violations of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(f), and (ii) with
respect {o any violations found, failing to refrofit the covered multi-family dwelling units

and public and common use areas to bring them into compliance with the requirements of

42 U.S.C. § 3604(f);



d. designing or constructing any covered multi-family dwellings in the future that
do not comply with 42 U.S._C. § 3604(1), and

e. failing or refusing to take such affirmative steps as may be necessary to restore,
as nearly as practicable, the victims of the Defendants’ unlawful practices to the position

they would have been in but for the discriminatory conduct.

3.7Enjoins the Defendants, their ofﬁc'ers, eﬁiployees, ageﬁts, successors and all Bﬂrj.c:r_
persons in active concert or participation with any of them from:

a. at the properties identified in paragraphs 4 and 5, faiting or refusing to bring
the public accommodations, including the rental offices, into fiall compliance with 42
1.8.C. § 12183(a)(1), 28 C.F.R. §§36.401 and 36.406, and 28 C.I.R. Part 36, Appendix
A

b. at the properties Videntiﬁ ed in paragraphs 4 and 5, fatling or refusing to conduct
a compliance survey to determine whether the retrofits ordered in paragraph (a), above,
were made properly;

¢. atf the properties identified in paragraph 13 and at all other covered multi-
family dwallings, with respect to the areas that are public accommodations, including
rental or sales éfﬁces, deéigned and constructed by any of the Defendants for first
occupancy after January 26, 1993, failing or refusing fo: (i) if not already done, conduct a
compliance survey of these public accommodations to identify violations of 42 U.S.C. §
12183(e)(1), 28 C.ER. §§36.401 and 36.406, and 28 C.E.R. Part 36, Appendix A, and (i15

with respect to any violations found, retrofit the public accommodations areas to bring

10



them into compliance with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilit.i ¢s Actand

the ADA Standards,

d. designing or constructing any public accommodations at any covered multi-

family dwellings in the future that do not comply with 42 U.S.C. §12183(a)(1), 28 C.F.R.

§§36.401 and' 36.406, and 28 C.E.R. Part 36, Appendix A; and

e. failing or refusing to tak(? such affirmative steps as may be necessary to restore,
as nearly as practicable, the victims of the Defendants’ undawful practices to the position
they would have bezn in but for the discriminatory conduct.

4, Awards such monetary damages as would fully compensate cach person for mjuries
resulting from the above described discriminatery conduct against the Defendants pﬁrsuant 1o 42
U.S.C. §3614{d}(1¥B) and 42 US.C. § 12188(b)}2)B);

5, Assesses z civil penalty against each of the Defendants in the maximum amount
authorized by 42 U.8.C. §3614{d)(1}C) and 42 U.S.C. §12188(b)(2)}{C), to vindicate the public
interest.

i
i
i
i
I/ o L
i
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The United States further prays for such additional relief as the interests of justice may

require,
ERIC H. HOLDER, IR.
Attorney General '
R S
T.J ACKS LORETTA KING
1ng United States Attorney Acting Assistant Attorney General
Northern District of Texas Civil Rights Division

1100 Commerce Street, Suite 300
Dallas, Texas 75242-1699

QL /[ (/x LA

JOHN R. PARKER DONNA M. MUR HY i

Chicf, Civil Division DC Bar # 4384364 |

United States Attorney’s Office Acting Chief, Housing and Civil
Northern District of Texas Enforcement Section

1100 Commerce Street, Suite 300
Dallas, Texas 75242-1699

Deputy C}mef Housing and Civil
Enforcement Section

KEVINJ. KUEWSKT, KY Bar # 86448

JENNIFER E. MCALLISTER, VA Bar # 71180

Trial Attorneys

United States Department of J ustice

Civil Rights Division -~ = -

Housing and Civil Enfmcement Sechon

950 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20530

202-305-2913

202-514-1116 (fax)



